ธรณีวิทยาและบรรพชีวินวิทยาของหอยสกุลเลปโทดัส ไฟลัมแบรคิโอโพดา จากจังหวัดเพชรบูรณ์ในภาคกลางของประเทศไทย

> นางสาวมณีนุช ปานสอน เลขประจำตัว : 5132741123

รายงานนี้เป็นส่วนหนึ่งของการศึกษาตามหลักสูตรวิทยาศาสตร์บัณฑิต ภาควิชาธรณีวิทยา คณะวิทยาศาสตร์ จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย ปีการศึกษา 2554

## GEOLOGY AND PALEONTOLOGY OF *LEPTODUS*, BRACHIOPODA FROM CHANGWAT PHETCHABUN IN CENTRAL THAILAND

Miss Maneenuch Pansorn ID: 5132741123

A Report in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirement for the Degree of Bachelor Science Department of Geology,Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University Academic Year 2011

Date of Submit..... Date of Approval..... Advisor's signature....

(Dr. Yoshio Sato)

ชื่อโครงการ : ธรณีวิทยาและบรรพชีวินวิทยาของหอยสกุลเลปโทดัส ไฟลัมแบรคิโอโพดา จากจังหวัดเพชรบูรณ์ในภาคกลางของประเทศไทย ผู้ทำการวิจัย : นางสาว มณีนุช ปานสอน อาจารย์ที่ปรึกษา : ดร.โยซิโอะ ซาโตะ ภาควิชา : ธรณีวิทยา คณะวิทยาศาสตร์ จุฬาลงกรณ์มหาวิทยาลัย ปีการศึกษา : 2554

## บทคัดย่อ

เลปโทดัส เป็นชื่อสกุลหนึ่งของหอยแบรคิโอพอดที่เป็นซากดึกดำบรรพ์ดรรชนีในยุคเพอร์เมียน ตอนกลาง โดยฟอสซิลนี้จะเก็บรักษาส่วนของโครงสร้างอ่อนไว้ ซึ่งต่างจากหอยแบรคิโอพอดสกุลอื่นที่ มักจะพบโครงสร้างแข็งเป็นฟอสซิล เลปโทดัสนี้ได้ถูกนำมาศึกษาโดยใช้ความรู้ทางธรณีวิทยา และ บรรพชีวินวิทยา เพื่อสร้างสภาพแวดล้อมโบราณและระบบนิเวศน์โบราณของมัน โดยพื้นที่ศึกษาอยู่ใน บางส่วนของอำเภอบึงสามพันและอำเภอหนองไผ่ ในจังหวัดเพชรบูรณ์ มีการลำดับชั้นหินและเก็บ ตัวอย่างจากการออกภาคสนาม หลังจากนั้นนำตัวอย่างหินมาตัดเพื่อศึกษาศิลาวรรณาใต้กล้อง จุลทรรศน์ในห้องปฏิบัติการ

ผลการศึกษาพบหอยเลปโทดัสทั้งหมด 69 ตัว มีขนาดเฉลี่ยอยู่ที่ความยาวประมาณ 13-25มิลลิเมตร โดยสามารถระบุชนิดได้เป็น *L*. sp. Cf. *L*. nobilis (Waagen, 1883) ถูกพบในหินปูนที่มีแร่ดินปนอยู่ ในเนื้อ โดยหินปูนมีสีสดสีเทาดำ และมีสีผุสีเทาน้ำตาล และพบในหินโคลนถึงหินดินดานที่มีความแข็ง มากเนื่องจากซิลิกา ฟอสซิลอื่นที่พบร่วมได้แก่ไบรโอซัว, สาหร่าย, ไคนอยด์, หอยสองฝาเท่า, และหอย แบรคิโอพอดสกุลอื่น โดยจากผลของฟอสซิลที่พบร่วม, การลำดับชั้นหิน และศึกษาศิลาวรรณา สามารถบอกสภาพแวดล้อมโบราณของหอยสกุลนี้ได้ว่าอยู่ในบริเวณน้ำทะเลตื้น ในสังคมของเทือก ประการังสันดอน โดยเกี่ยวข้องกับไบรโอซัว และฟอสซิลอื่นๆที่พบ Title : GEOLOGY AND PALEONTOLOGY OF *LEPTODUS*, BRACHIOPODA FROM CHANGWAT PHETCHABUN IN CENTRAL THAILAND
Researcher : Miss Maneenuch Pansorn
Advisor : Dr.Yoshio Sato
Department : Geology, Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University
Academic year : 2011

## Abstract

Important Middle Permian index fossil of brachiopod, Leptodus, which preserve with softpart instead hard part like another one's genus is studied by geology and paleontology for reconstruct paleoenvironment and paleoecology. Part of Amphoe Bueng Sam Pan and Amphoe Nong Phai in Changwat Phetchabun is study area. Lithostratigraphy was constructed and the samples were collected in field work. After that was prepared and studied thin section in laboratory.

In fossil localities found 69 *Leptodus*, size frequency length is about 13-15 mm. Identified to *L*. sp. Cf. *L*. nobilis (Waagen, 1883), that found in muddy limestone, fresh color is grey-black, weather color is brownish gray. And found in silicified mudstone too. The associated fossils are bryozoa, algae, crinoids, bivalve, and another genus of brachiopod. By all result, associated fossils, lithostratigraphy and thin section can reconstruct paleoenvironments to shallow marine, in barrier reef top community.

### Acknowledgements

This report has been accomplished with the help, suggestion and encouragement of many people. Firstly, I appreciate help and support from Dr. Yoshio Sato who is my advisors and always give me excellent suggestion and encouragement.

Thanks are extended to my family, all geology classmates (specially thank to Miss Chayarus Centhonglang, Miss Thanatchaporn Phanomphongphaisarn and Miss Panissara Navasamakkarn for helpful in field investigation and laboratory work) and juniors for their helpfulness and cheerfulness in the last three years. Finally, I appreciate all supports from the others that have not been mentioned.

## Contents

บทคัดย่อ	iv
Abstract	V
Acknowledgements	vi
Chapter 1 About the project and data	1
1.1 General statement	1
1.2 Objectives	2
1.3 Scope of study	2
1.4 Study areas	2-6
1.5 Expected results	7
1.6 Methodology	8-9
Chapter 2 Results	10-31
2.1 Field Investigation	10-17
2.1.1) Lithostratigraphy	13-17
2.2 Petrography	18-19
2.2.1) Thin section	18-19
2.3 Paleontological study	18-31
2.3.1) General description of Leptodus	19-24
2.3.2) Size frequency analysis of <i>Leptodus</i>	24-30
2.3.2) Fossil list in each locality	31

Page

# Contents (cont.)

## Page

Chapter 3 Results	32
3.1 Discussion	32-38
3.1.1) Occurrence of <i>Leptodus</i>	32-33
3.1.2) Paleoenvironment and taphonomy of Leptodus	34-35
3.1.3) Paleoautoecology of Leptodus	36-38
3.2 Conclusion	38-39
References	40

viii

# List of Figures

Figure		page
1.1	Study area (Red box) and location of fossil (Yellow stars),	3
	in ChangwatPhetchabun, Central Thailand Map: Ban Sap Mai Daeng.	
	WGS 84 Series L7018 Sheet 5140I Thailand 1:50,000.	
1.2	Geologic map of ChangwatPhetchabun, scale 1:250,000,	4
	Department of Mineral Resource, Compiled by KittiKhaowiset and	
	NarinChanfoo, 2009. Green box shows geologic map around the study area.	
1.3	Geologic map of ChangwatPhetchabun, Department of Mineral	5
	Resource and the in the green box is study area.	
1.4	Explanation of geologic map of ChangwatPhetchabun which	6
	is shown in above.	
1.5	Methods of study can be divided into 7 steps as summarized in the	8
	schematic diagram and detail is described below.	
2.1	The red box is study area, the yellow stars represent fossil localities which	10
	are as; 1. Ban Phot 2. Ban U Ruea 3. Khao Yai 4. Khao Khad Quarry	
2.2	The Study area showing predominantly argillaceous limestone and	11
	silicified mudstone exposed.	
2.3	Khao Khad Quarry representing obviously bedded argillaceous limestone	12
	inter-bedded with silicified mudstone	
2.4	Lithostratigraphy in Khao Khad Quarry	13
2.5	Ban U Ruea outcrop showing bedded of argillaceous limestone	14
	which is overlaid by calcareous mudstone (in red line).	
2.6	Lithostratigraphy of Ban U Rea	15
2.7	Lithostratigraphy of Ban Khao Yai	16

# List of Figures (cont.)

Figure		page
2.8	Khao Yai outcrop representing generally bedded argillaceous	17
	limestone inter-bedded with calcareous mudstone (in red line)	
2.9	showing textural classification of carbonate sediments	18
	reference to Folk (1959)	
2.10	Thin section in PPL	18
2.11	Example of Leptodus which is found in each fossil locality	19
2.12	Fundamentary morphology of Brachiopoda shell consists of pedicle	20
	valve and brachial valve	
Plate I	Comparison pictures of Lyttoniidae (Waagen, 1883)	22
2.13	a); Morphology of inner plate in <i>Leptodus</i> modified from Williams, 1953	24
	b); Reconstruction of inner plate of <i>Leptodus</i> modified from Rudwick, 1970	
3.1	Reconstruction of Paleoenvironment and carbonate sediments	34
	on a shelf to continent	
3.2	Reconstruction of paleoecology of fossil assemblage	35

## List of Tables

Table		Page
0.1	Total number and size of Lantadua in Khao Khad Quarry	25
2.1		20
2.2	Total number and size of Leptodus in Khao Yai	26
2.3	Representing total number and size of <i>Leptodus</i> in Ban Phot,	27
	This fossil locality has the most number of fossils because	
	these are well preserve in silicified	
2.4	Showing total number and size of <i>Leptodus</i> in Ban U Ruea	29
2.5	shows fossils that found with Leptodus	31
3.1	Occurrence in each fossil locality	32
3.2	Paleoenvironment in each fossil locality	35

# List of Graphs

Graph		Page
2.1	Represents the Lenght of <i>Leptodus</i> in Khao Khad Quarry (Fossil locality 4)	26
2.2	Represents the length of <i>Leptodus</i> in Ban Phot (Fossil locality 1)	28
2.3	Represents the Lenght of <i>Leptodus</i> in Ban U Ruea (Fossil locality 2)	30
2.4	Represents the Lenght of <i>Leptodus</i> in the study area.	30
	The size frequency range is approximately 13 - 23 mm.	

xii

### CHAPTER 1

## ABOUT THE PROJECT AND DATA

- 1.1 General Statement
- 1.2 Objectives
- 1.3 Scope of Work
- 1.4 Study Area
- 1.5 Expected Results
- 1.6 Methodology

#### 1.1 General statement

*Leptodus*, Brachiopoda, Class Articulata, Superfamily Lyttoniacea (Williams, 1965). *Leptodus* is an extinct genus of articulate brachiopods, of the Permian Period (299 million to 251 million years ago). It is very specialized form characterized by an aberrant morphology, had an Oysterlike pedicle valve, which anchored the shell to the substratesand was probably attached to other shells by the cementation. This research is to reconstructpaleoenvironments and paleoecology of *Leptodus* by using geological and paleontological studies. Faciesanalysis consist of identification of sedimentary structures, preparation of lithologic columnar section and petrography and the present genus is important index fossil in Middle Permian.

#### 1.2 Objectives

- 1. Toanalysis Size frequency of Leptodus from measured data of the fossil
- 2. To reconstruct the paleoenvironments and taphonomy of Leptodus
- 3. To reconstruct paleoautoecology while *Leptodus* werelived.

#### 1.3 Scope of study

Investigation on lithostratigraphy from outcrops in study area, from Amphoe Bung Samphan to AmphoeNongPhai, ChangwatPhetchabun has to be proceeded to provide lithostratigraphic columnfor reconstructing and identifying paleoenvironments. Moreover, reconstructing paleoecology, taphonomy and analyzing size frequency distribution of *Leptodus*.

#### 1.4 Study area

Study areas are in the red box, part of topographic map scale 1:50,000, Sheet 5140I (Ban Sap Mai Deang) cover part of AmphoeBueng Sam Phan and AmphoeNongPhai in ChangwatPhetchabun.



Figure 1.1) Study area (Red box) and location of fossil (Yellow stars), in ChangwatPhetchabun, Central Thailand Map: Ban Sap Mai Daeng .WGS 84 Series L7018 Sheet 5140I Thailand 1:50,000.



**Figure 1.2)** Geologic map of ChangwatPhetchabun, scale 1:250,000, Department of Mineral Resource, Compiled by KittiKhaowiset and NarinChanfoo, 2009. Green box shows geologic map around the study Se Disultanen (24) II. Ian Tutoria Tutofia meneta 230 Ban Iala 244 II. In: Challen Charanges, et al., 1988 Se Dia Da Dia Di Stati III. Ian Sectio unitario 2350 Ban Dia Da Stati III. Ian Sectio Unitario 2350

ระวรณพรรฐรณ์ NE 47-16 โดย สำนักครณีวิทยา 2522 PHETCHABUN NE 47-16 by Burns of Geological Survey, 1975

ระวาบบำและเพราว 554) III โดย สมสร้า คือปพิล เลล Bas Sa Khao 534) III by Mean ปัญสภร ค.ศ. 1988 เศนาที่รรณีวิทยามาควาสวาย 1.250,000 by Bureso of Geologic Geological msp. tonle 1: 250,000 by Bureso of Geologic



Figure 1.3) Geologic map of ChangwatPhetchabun, Department of Mineral Resource and the in the green box is study area.

## คำอธิบาย EXPLANATION

ตะกอบ มินขั้น และมินแปง SEDIMENT, SEDIMENTARY AND METAMORPHIC ROCKS	ขึ้งทมวดงกุมพืบ FORMATION/GROUP	ųn PERIOD	อามุ (ถ้าเปปี) AGE (เมร.)
		ดวอเทอว์มาวี QUATERNARY	
ทั้งเกราะหนึ่งคือแล้ สินไททองกามและ อรัญสังเริ่มหาง หลังและและหางนั้น และสามออง และ สินการและ มิโทยรูปและหางนี้ และเริ่มหาง เป็นเกราะสินกมัตรใหญ่เป็นขุญคราม "สามารถเข้าและ และเข้าแห่ง และ	เมวาที่ไม่แขกร่วง ออมกับไดรห มายถูก REVAT Ju., khorat Gp แลวสถินทุกข ออุทันไทรห 900 PULS Ju., khorat Gp แลวสถินตรช่วงอุกที่ไม่ไครห มองมีเมตรช่วงอุกที่ไม่ไครห มองมีเป็นตรช่วงอุกที่ไม่ไครห	กวีมทรียส CRETACEOUS	
<ul> <li>לערכים לאיי ביוד ביודן לעולמייר ביוקא לאייר ביולא של האיר ביולא לא האיר ביולא אייר בארגע ביולא לא האיר בארגע ביולא בי עריכו ביולא ביולא ביולא ביולא ביולא ביולא ביולא ביול ביולא ביולא ביול ביולא ביולא ביולא</li></ul>	ของพัฒนะอำเภาสอดทั้งไลยน ขอยง พรแรงของ มันจหลา ออ	กรับหลียุสติงจุบาสสิต CRETACEOUS to JURASSIC	66.4 210
ทันทราณปี แอะทันโดย สีมารมดร นี้หาสดดร เอี้ยนับโดก ขึ้นสีดรู้หายอรูเป็นบารั้น ทันทราด กับราดดร น่างเอเตร สัดอะอัต อินุปายครางกระการทุกษณีตรี สอมพิมาราย สัตวารัฐอาริตรามระดดของและได้ดังไปร่ สนิตกระ แต่ สมพุทภาพอาริตราศสีตรี โลกกราชได้นี้ pay, lines แต่กันกะทุกแต่, poor send และท่างได้ with presult pay สินใหญ่และ เอฟส์และรูปกล่างสื่อสอง	หมวกที่แกกระกิจ คุณที่เปลราช PBU KRADUNG Fai, KBORAT Cji	งูแวลาริก JURASSIC	
Τωτηγο δήκτωση στηρωση άλεγωση γραγιατική στη τη πορογιατη τη του τη του τη τη του τη τ	หมวดกินนี้หลวงคุ่มก็เปลราร NAN FONG 78 ไปโชเมส 7 ดุง าณวลเป็นที่วยกับสาย คลุ่มก็เปลราร HUALHIN LAT Fm ได้โชเมส 7 ดุง	โทรแอสจิก TRIASSIC	
ກັບສັບຊານ ລັກກວ່າ ເບັ້ນການລາງ ຈັນດາການ ລີ້ບັດ ແລະກັດ ເບັ້ນການທະ ມີຂຶ້ນກັນໂລະອຸດັມແນນເຮັດມາກຄອນ ມີຍາຍາງໄດ້ແລະ ມີຊີລົກອ ເລື້ອແກ່ກະການ ກິນູໂລະໂດຍການເອົາຍາງ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອັດ ເບັ້ານັ້ນ ແລະ ເປັນແລະໄດ້ຄະນາກອານ ມີຍາຍາງໄດ້ ແລະ ມີຊີລິກອ ເປັນການ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງການການ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການໄດ້ ແລະ ເປັນ ເຫັນແລະ ແລະ ແລະ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອກະລັດການການ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງການ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງການ ເອົາເຮັ້າ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ລາວ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງການ ເອົາເຮັ້າ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ລາວ ເປັນເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ລາວ ເປັນການ ເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການ ແລະ ເປັນການ ແລະ ເປັນແລະເອົາຍາງ ແລະ ເປັນການ ແຫຼງ ແລະ ແລະ ດາວ ແລະ ເປັນການທີ່ເປັນການ ເປັນການ ເປັນການ ເປັນການ ແລະ ເປັນການ ແລະ ເປັນການ ແລະ ເປັນການ.	หมระสับเริ่มหูก พ.ส.1910 (ค.ศ. 1911) - ค.ศ. 1912 (ค.ศ. 1914) 1913 (ค.ศ. 1914) 1914 (ค.ศ. 1914) 1914 (ค.ศ. 1914) 1914 (ค.ศ. 1914)	เพราะมีการ PERMIAN	245-256
ฟันกราม ขับกรายแป้ง ขึ้นส่วนสายและข้าง โดยน สีทักโรสามเสสไขร รับบารจึงรับแรง รับปีของระบบและทับสันตัวเครื่องขับ "แต่ส่วนๆ, และโอนา โอน้อ แต่ pucking, ฟิลฟิ (s greenick gry), โอม Io beddet feddet (confidencia) (will be the Los	-	เพลาเมียมกัง การแอลิมฟอร์ต PERMIAN Io CARBONIFEROUS	
ที่ให้ส่วนรายสำหัญขณาใน สึการ ถึงสามสำหรัด มีบัทการ ไม่ท่านส่งหมัดท่าง ที่ในสร้าด สึกกร กับการก่องมีบัตกร่องสาม รายส่งๆ เป็นปรู รุณกรุงปนปล, ริณกาณ, ทั้งการแต่ง-รุณารุงปัตถุ สุภาพ, ระแต่งรับปน, Biographic States การก	หมาดทีมวังตะทุง พ.ล.พ.ร.ล.คทย.พ.ศ.ศ.	CARBONIFEROUS	
ពីអតីតមី IGNEOUS ROCKS	ųń PERIOI		
<ul> <li>ກັບມະ ແດກກໍ ເຮັດກັດເ ເວັດເຮັດເປັນການ ແລະເປັນກ່າວ ໃຫ້ການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ການເປັນເຮັດເປັນການ ແລະ ແລະ ແບບ ແລະ ແມ່ນ ແລະ ເປັນ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ແຕ່ມ ເຮັດເປັນ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປ ແຕ່ນ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນ ເຮັດເປັນ ເຮັດເປັນ ເຮັດເປັນ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັນການ ເຮັດເປັ</li></ul>	ากจาเข็มวิ TERITAR	Y	
จึงไปไร้ไข้แม่เหนือ จึงเข้ามันสัมหาร์อง จังเพรไปโดย รูโรด จึงไปไร้ไหล่ มัดได้ไขที่แรงอีก สัมมัดได้ไขมังรู้มีเรื่อมหรือ ที่จะไปไม่ไม่คงจำระเสร็จและรูโด Boote pract, formalie pract, practicelle, Bottle anciente grante, anciente tomancies grante, horse-tomancies grante	Interna TREASSI	0	
ບັນງ່າຍໍາ ກິນແລະເລັບລິດການກໍ່ ກັບໄວ ໂດຍຂັດການຍໍາໄດ້ການແຜລັກຈະມີກາດ ເຮັດກາດ ອີກກາດແອກລອງທາໄກ່ ລັດການແຜລັດຈະກັບໄວ ໃນໄວ ເລືອກວ ກິດກາຍແມ່ນວ່າກິມແຮລລີໂອກເຫັນການແຮ້ຫຼະ ຈັນທີ ແຜ່ແມ່ນດາມີ, ຢູ່ຈຸນຢ່ານ ເປທີ, general-geny, byໃຫ້ ແຼງກຸ, ທາໃຫ້ແລຍງງາຍການແຮງ general-geny ແປກເວັນແ ໜ້າທີ່ ເຫຼື່ອງ ແໜ້	ไทยเอสซิก ถึง เห TRIASSIC to PE	อาเมียน RMIAN	210-286
ອີນແອນທີ່ໄຮກໍເລີ້ອອກເອົາເຈົ້າເອົາມາແທນ ເບີ້ຂອງເຊີຍອາຫານ ໃນເຮອກເປັນແຮກເປັນແຮກອັນແລະທະນານອາທິປໍລາກັນແຮງລາຍເປັນກັນ ແລະລະແອ popuey, gravat grava, very Cas-gravat with bandwater passoy on and band vancions ຈີນໃຊ້ ໄດ້ ໂດຍ ອີກາດອານ ເບີຍງອຸມີຍອກການເນັ້ດເປັນອາການອອກເປັນແຜນການ ໂດຍອອ ແອລະແຫລ່ງອອ Rhysten, pale grav, very Cas-gravat paghanic textus was plagodine ແລະ ແຫລະ passoonoi.	าพอาเมียา PERNIA:	r x	

Figure 1.4) Explanation of geologic map of ChangwatPhetchabun which is shown in above.

## 1.5 Expected Results

- 1. Size frequency of *Leptodus*
- 2. Paleoenvironments and taphonomy of *Leptodus*
- 3. Paleoautoecology while *Leptodus were alived*.

### 1.7 Methodology

Figure 1.5) Methods of study can be divided into 7 steps as summarized in the schematic

diagram and detail is described below.



- 1. Literature review
  - Study previous works that are related to this project from published papers about *Leptodus*, Geology of Phetchabun and reconstruction of paleoenvironments of *Leptodus*.
- 2. Preparation of work plan
  - Design scope of work, methodology, and time schedule for preparation of next process.
- 3. Field work and sample collection
  - Preparation of geologic map of the study area.
  - Fix fossil localities, the stratigraphical position of the study area.
  - Construct stratigraphic table for the study area.
  - Collect samples to prepare thin sections for laboratory works.

#### 4. Laboratory work

- Prepare and study thin section.
- Reconstruction of ecology of *Leptodus*.
- Measurement of fossils.
- 5. Discussion and Conclusion
  - Collect and interpret the data from laboratory.
  - Discuss and conclude all results for leading to presentation and report.
- 6. Writing report and Presentation.

## CHAPTER 2

RESULTS

- 2.1 Field Investigation
  - 2.1.1 Lithostratigraphy
- 2.2 Petrography
  - 2.2.1 Thin section
- 2.3 Paleontological study.
  - 2.3.1) General description of *Leptodus*.
  - 23.2) Size frequency analysis of *Leptodus*.
  - 2.3.3) Fossil list in each locality



## 2.1 Field Investigation

...

There are 4 fossil localities in study area. The name is Ban Phot, Ban U Ruea, Khao Yai, and Khao Khad Quary (order form North to South)

Stratigraphy of fossil localities was constructed except Ban Phot's fossil locality

Figure 2.1) The red box is study area, the yellow stars represent fossil localities which are as;

- 1. Ban Phot
- 2. Ban U Ruea
- 3. Khao Yai
- 4. Khao Khad Quarry



Figure 2.2) The Study area showing predominantly argillaceous limestone and silicified mudstone exposed.



Figure 2.3) Khao Khad Quarry representing obviously bedded argillaceous limestone inter-

bedded with silicified mudstone.



Figure 2.4) showing the lithostratigraphy in Khao Khad Quarry



Figure 2.5) Ban U Ruea outcrop showing bedded of argillaceous limestone which is overlaid by calcareous mudstone (in red line).

#### Calcareous Shale/calcareous Mudstone:

Weather: medium-dark brownish gray, yellowish gray, there are Leptodus in this part.

#### Argillaceous limestone:

Weather: medium-dark purplish gray, medium-dark pinkish brown, pinkish black Fresh: dark gray, black



Figure 2.6) Showing the lithostratigraphy of Ban U Rea



Figure 2.7) Showing lithostratigraphy of Ban Khao Yai



Figure 2.8) Khao Yai outcrop representing generally bedded argillaceous limestone interbedded with calcareous mudstone (in red line).

### 2.2 Petrography

#### 2.2.1 Thin section



Figure 2.9) showing textural classification of carbonate sediments reference to Folk (1959)



These resulting thin sections of limestone can view under the microscope in plane-polarised light. The section shows calcite (CaC03), the main mineral in the rock. However, most of it is in the form of small fossil fragments (bioclasts) in a lime mud matrix (micrite)

> Figure 2.10) showing thin section in PPL a.) Brachiopod and crinoids fragment in lime mud matrix

b.) Bryozoa fragments in yellow circle



c.) Crinoid and brachiopod fragments in yellow circles

## 2.3 Paleontological study



### 2.3.1) General description of Leptodus.

At first, Kayser (1882) described this genus (*Leptodus*) as fish teeth by using the ill preserved specimens collected from China. After that, Kayser (1882) described this genus as Brachiopoda, *Lyttonia*, by the well preserved specimens collected from Salt Range in Islamic Republic of Pakistan. So *Lyttonia* is the synonym of *Leptodus*. Only the name*Lyttonia* remained as family name, Lyttoniidae.

Figure 2.11) Showing example of Leptodus which is found in each fossil locality

- a); Leptodus in Ban Phot (fossil locality 1)
- b); Leptodus in Khoa Khad Quarry (fossil locality 2)
- c); Leptodus in Khoa Yai (fossil locality 3)
- d); Leptodus in Ban U Ruea (fossil locality 4)



Figure 2.12) Fundamentary morphology of Brachiopoda shell consists of pedicle valve and brachial valve.

Taxonomical position of *Leptodus* 

1. Taxonomy

Phylum	TENTACULATA
Class	BRACHIOPODA
Subclass	ARTICULATA
Order	Strophomenida
Suborder	Oldaminidina
Superfamily	Lyttoniacea
Genus	Leptodus (Kayser, 1882)
Species L. sp. Cf. L. n	obilis (Waagen, 1883)

2. Superfamily

This curious widespread group of fewer than 20 genera flowered in the Carboniferous, Permian and ligeredon into the Triassic. The brachial valve was sometimes vestigial, barely covering the lophophore, and the pedicle valve was usually cemented to the substrates. *Leptodus* is very important index fossil for middle Permian from Leonnordian to Guadalupian. In practical, it is easy to correlate south Asia to Japan and USA.

3. Description of *Leptodus* 

#### Leptodus Kayser, 1882

Subcircular to irregularly elongate outline of thick pedicle valve, with thin serrated-eaged brachial valve. Massive posterior flap on pedicle valve umboused for cementation. Interior of pedicle valve with lateral ridges (into which the brachial valve fitted) and with median septum; hingeline short; brachial valve with median channel. Average adult length 3 to 5 cm. Lower to Middle Permian, cosmopolitan, cemented on to hard substrates on pedicle valve.



#### Explanation of Plate I

There are comparison pictures of Lyttoniidae (Waagen, 1883)

1,4,7 *Coscinophora*-Like *Leptodus* but with median and lateral ridges of symmetrical septal apparatus broken into series of discrete beads; internal plate of brachial valve with lobes united by dissepiments to define series of holes complementary to ventral beads(Cooper & Stehli, 1955)

2,8,10 *Oldhamina*-Pedicle valve strongly convex, probably unattached in adult stages of growth with recurved posterior flap; septal apparatus symmetrical with many lateral pairs of high, sharp septa; median incision of thermal plate of brachial valve, vestigial (Waagen, 1883)

3,5,6,9 *Leptodus*-Pedicle valve attached to variable extent, irregular in outline, commonly with great expansion of peripheral zone, posterior flap everted; septal apparatus symmetrical with ou to 33 pairs of blunt septa; median incision of internal plate of brachial valve vestigial (Kayser, 1882)

11 Leptodus found in USA.

12 Leptodus found in Japan that associated with Bryozoa

13 Bryozoa in USA that is found in associate with number 11



## 2.3.2) Size frequency analysis of *Leptodus*.

There are 69 sample of *Leptodus* found in all locality, Kho Khad Quary, Ban Phot, Ban U Ruea and Khao Yai

Khao Khad Quarry		
	Size	e (mm.)
Numbers	Width	Length
1	26.65	31.85
2	27.90	31.00
3	32.50	36.40
4	31.25	36.75
5	29.55	32.35
6	45.55	50.00
7	23.50	27.00
8	30.00	33.10
9	24.45	26.95
10	13.35	14.25
11	11.50	13.95
12	11.85	14.45

 Table 2.1) Showing total number and size of Leptodus in Khao Khad Quarry



Graph 2.1) represents the Lenght of Leptodus in Khao Khad Quarry (Fossil locality 4).

Khao Yai		
Numbers	Size (mm.)	
	Width	Length
1	17.30	22.25

Table 2.2) Showing total number and size of Leptodus in Khao Yai

Ban Phot			
	Size (mm.)		
Numbers	Width	Length	
1	15.00	11.65	
2	13.55	15.85	
3	18.60	18.45	
4	12.35	15.10	
5	15.75	18.85	
6	13.35	14.65	
7	19.95	27.45	
8	19.45	22.75	
9	9.40	12.45	
10	25.75	30.30	
11	18.45	22.45	
12	7.00	8.90	
13	22.10	23.40	
14	30.80	35.00	
15	25.45	32.95	
16	9.25	14.00	
17	12.55	14.25	
18	12.75	14.35	
19	9.10	9.35	
20	16.65	18.35	
21	18.35	20.95	
22	7.00	8.45	
23	15.00	18.10	
24	11.35	12.25	
25	19.35	22.35	
26	30.40	35.95	
27	9.55	11.85	
28	20.35	23.00	
29	7.20	8.85	
30	10.00	14.55	
31	20.00	23.75	
32	18.35	22.55	
33	8.95	10.25	
34	11.55	15.45	

Table 2.3) Representing total number and size of Leptodus in Ban Phot, This fossil

locality has the most number of fossils because these are well preserve in silicified



Graph 2.2) represents the length of *Leptodus* in Ban Phot (Fossil locality 1)

Ban U Ruea		
	Siz	e (mm.)
Numbers	Width	Length
1	18.55	20.20
2	15.00	18.25
3	12.55	16.15
4	9.10	11.45
5	19.60	23.90
6	15.25	16.55
7	16.70	25.10
8	12.85	19.60
9	11.30	15.35
10	8.45	13.00
11	12.25	14.10
12	18.05	22.35
13	11.00	14.40
14	9.75	12.10
15	21.90	25.85
16	25.25	28.40
17	27.80	32.55
18	10.30	15.00
19	35.10	37.75
20	18.70	23.90
21	9.45	12.60
22	17.00	22.85

Table 2.4) Showing total number and size of *Leptodus* in Ban U Ruea



Graph 2.3) represents the Lenght of *Leptodus* in Ban U Ruea (Fossil locality 2).



**Graph 2.4)** represents the Lenght of *Leptodus* in the study area. The size frequency range is approximately 13 - 25 mm.

## 2.2.3) Fossil list in each locality

Location	Number of Leptodus	Main Fossil Associated	Rock Type
Ban Phot (fossil locality 1)	34	Predominantly Bryozoa, Brachiopod, Bivalve, Algae, and Sponge	Argilaceous Limestone interbeded with thin calcaleous shale
Ban U Ruea (fossil locality 2)	22	Predominantly Bryozoa, Brachiopod, Bivalve, Algae, and Sponge	Bedded Argilaceous Limestone interbeded with thin calcaleous shale
Khao Yai (fossil locality 3)	1	Predominantly Bryozoa, Brachiopod, Bivalve, and Algae	Bedded Argilaceous Limestone interbeded with thin calcaleous shale
Khao Khad Quarry (fossil locality 4)	12	Bryozoa, Brachiopod, Bivalve, Algae, and Ammonoid	Bedded Argilaceous Limestone interbeded with thin calcaleous shale

Table 2.5) shows fossils that found with Leptodus

# CHAPTER 3 DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION

#### 3.1 Discussion

- 3.1.1 Occurrence of Leptodus
- 3.1.2 Paleoenvironments and taphonomy of Leptodus
- 3.1.3 Paleoautoecology of Leptodus

3.2 Conclusion

#### 3.1 Discussion

#### 3.1.1 Occurrence of Leptodus

Brachial and pedicle valve are separated and inarticulated, only brachial valves and internal plates are found in the limestone. Fragmentation, alteration and life position in the limestone are index for occurrence.

Autochthonous occurrence is as follows;

Life position of coral is perpendicular to bedding plane. Bryozoa, Ammonoid,

Brachiopoda and Bivalve are associated each other. Pedicle valves are found as lower convex position. Spines on the pedicle valve are preserved. Inner plates are

nearly perfect.

Allochthonous occurrence is as follows;

All the elements in fossil assemblage are transported from the reef rocks and deposited in the sediment. Fragmentation and abrasion are observed. The fragments of crinoids are observed. Inner plates are all fragmental.

Fossil locality	Occurrence
1: Ban Phot	Autochthonous
2: Ban U Ruea	Autochthonous
3: Khao Yai	Autochthonous
4: Khao Khad Quarry	Allochthonuous

Table 3.1) Occurrence in each fossil locality.

#### 3.1.2 Paleoenvironments and taphonomy of Leptodus



Figure 3.1) Reconstruction of Paleoenvironment and carbonate sediments on a shelf to continent

*Leptodus Leptodus* generally were found in argillaceous fossiliferous limestone and calcareous mudstone. They always were found with Bryozoa, Bivalve and Brachiopod. And limestone type is fossiliferous micrite (Folk, 1959)

From all result of limestone facies analysis, thin section, and associated fossil, it is possible to reconstruct three kinds of paleoenvironments. According to the **Figure 3.1**, Reef top on the reef rock, rather deeper fossiliferous and deeper micrite

Fossil locality	Paleoenvironment
1: Ban Phot	Coral reef top or near to the fore reef coral.
2: Ban U Ruea	Coral reef top or near to the fore reef coral.
3: Khao Yai	Coral reef top or near to the fore reef coral.
4: Khao Khad Quarry	Rather deep, 1000m

Table 3.2) Paleoenvironment in each fossil locality

### Taphonomy of Leptodus

*Leptodus*, Benthic fossil lived and died on the seafloor, after that, sedimentary deposited and covered them (such as mudstone, limestone). The hard part of the organism was dissolved and the soft part was replaced with minerals ( $SiO_2$  or  $CaCO_3$ ) over time, totally they become to petrification, and preserved.

#### 3.1.3 Paleoautoecology of Leptodus

![](_page_47_Figure_1.jpeg)

Figure 3.2) Reconstruction of paleoecology of fossil assemblage.

Paleoecology of fossil assemblages are reconstructed Paleosynecologys from the results of associated fossils, bryozoa, brachiopod, bivalve, algae, and sponge. They are in barrier reef top community. (**Figure 3.2**) This assemblage is characterized by the Productus type brachiopoda. They have so many species on the brachial valve. Like those assemblage is reconstructed by the brachiopoda and bryozoa.

#### Explanation of Figure 3.2

Bryozoa (Ectoprocta) are in zone a, b, c and d

- a Acanthoclaxdia anceps
- b- Fenestella retiformis
- c- Synocladia virgulacca
- d- Thamniscus dubius

Brachiopoda (Articulata: Terebratulida) was in zone e

e- Dielasma elongatum

Brachiopoda (Articulata: Rhynchonellida) was in zone h

h-Stenoscisma humbletonensis

Mollusca (Bivalvia: Pterioida) was in zone j and l

j-Bakevellia binneyi

I-Streblochonudria pusilla

(Bivalvia: Arcoida) was in zone k

k-Parallelodom striatus

Paleoautoecology; *Leptodus* had been living on the surface of rather muddy limestone. To collect the foods effectively, brachial valve is disappeared. So they need the natural turbulence of water or they make turbulence by using the tentacles on the inner plate. Tantacles may be strong enough to make a big current. If they do not have the strong tentacles system, they will be buried with the sediments. In the samples I collected, there are no distinct spines on the surface of pedicle valve. So micro environments for the *Leptodus*, they may prefer the calm environment without harder turbulence of water. It is impossible to recognize the younger stage. At the young state, *Leptodus* had been attaching to the another animal, crinoids, bryozoa, coral and sponge. After that, they moved to the mud surface of bottom.

#### 3.2 Conclusions

- There are 4 fossil localities in study area those are Ban Phot, Ban U Ruea, Khao Khad Qurry, and Khao Yai. Each localities had different amont, Ban Phot found 34, Ban U Ruea found 22, Khao Khad Quarry found 12 and Khao Yai found only 1 *Leptodus*. Generally, *Leptodus* was explored along N-S mountain trend in study area. Especially in Ban U ruea location, being well preserved as soft part by silica replacement, another place was CaCO<sub>3</sub>.
- The occurrence is *Leptodus*, Benthic fossil lived and died on the seafloor, after that, sedimentary deposited and covered them (such as mudstone, limestone). The hard part of the organism was dissolved and the soft part was replaced with minerals (SiO<sub>2</sub> or CaCO<sub>3</sub>) over time, totally they become to petrification, and preserved.

Size frequency of *Leptodus* in study area is ~10-22 mm. & ~13 - 25 mm. width and length respectively.

 Leptodus could be frequency found in Argillaceous Limestone which is associated with bryozoa, bradchiopod ammonoids and bivalve, There became Bryozoa-Leptodus community.(Fenestella)

Base on associated fossil and lithology, it can be referred that *Leptodus* were dominantly in continental shelf, shallow marine environment, warm water and in tropical area. So, they could distribute by the equatorial current system all over the wind in a short time.

- The *Leptodus* collected in Phetcabun, Central Thailand is identified to *Leptodus* sp. cf. *L. nobilis* (Waagen, 1883)
- Leptodus changed its life style from attaching to bryozoa and another animal in younger stage to sessile to the sediments in adult stage. In the younger stage it is may easy to move by the currents.

#### REFERENCES

- Folk, R.L. (1959); Practical petrographic classification of limestones: American Association of Petroleum Geologists Bulletin, v. 43, p. 1- 38.
- Moore, R.C. (ed.), (1965); Treatise on Invertebrate Paleontology. Part H, Brachiopoda, 2 vols. The Geological Society of America, Inc. & The University Of Kansas Press, 927 pp.
- Rudwick, M.J.S. (1970); Living and fossil brachiopods library, London, 199p.
- W. Waagen (1883); Productus Limestone Fossils, Part IV, fas. 2. Salt Range Fossils, Palaeontologia Indica, Series 13 1(4):391-546
- Wicander, R., and Monroe, J. S.(2010); *Historical Geology: Evolution of Earth and Life Through Time*, 6th ed. Brooks/Cole Publishing Company, Pacific Grove, California, 444 p.
- Williams (1953); The morphology and classification of the oldhominid brachiopods,
   Washington acod. Sci, Jour. Vol, .43, no.9, p.279-281.pls.1-3
- Williams(1965); Treatise on Invertebrate Paleontology, Part H, Brachiopoda, p.H510

- Yanagida, J., S. Sakagami, T. Ishibashi, T. Kawabe, A. Hatta, N. Nakornsri, T. Sugiyama, C. Chonglakmani, R. Ingavat-Helmcke, Y. Chongkanchanasoontorn, S. Piyasin, and T. Wongwanich(1988); Biostratigraphic study of Paleozoic and Mesozoic Groups in Central and Northern Thailand (An Interim Report) Kyushu University Fukuoka. 47 p.,33 pls.
- Yonagida (1989); Illustrator catalogue of Japanese fossil, p.42-43, Hufu Ryukon